Village News Volume XLVII, No. 13 July 14, 2017





Director of Recreation, Parks and Culture, Peggy Mark joined MVF Board Members, local officials and residents at the Annual MVF Independence Day Celebration. All showed gratitude and congratulations to the many parade winners and to Peggy, who will be retiring this August. For more photos from the event, parade contest results and 5K and Fun Run results, see pages 12 and 13.

Summertime activities all around the Village

by Mike Conroy

Now that summer is in full swing, there's plenty of time to spend outdoors before or after work, on the weekends or while taking a much needed vacation day with your family.

Montgomery Village has no shortage of close-by attractions. There are, of course, amusement parks, national museums, historical landmarks, thousands of restaurants, shopping opportunities and countless other things to do within a short driving distance. But what about things to do right here in Montgomery Village-where instead of spending money on gas, you could walk or bike to a park or pool, tennis court or event, and enjoy a day out in your own community?

There are seven MVFowned community pools for you to enjoy, either solo or with family and friends. All pools are open to residents with a valid activity cardthere's no restriction as to which pool you can visit; try a new one every day! The newly renovated Apple Ridge Pool has plenty of fun features for kids of all ages, including a body slide, a double slide, spray ground, current channel, dumping buckets, in-water sun shelf lounging area, underwater bench with cool water jets, an island pool deck and

See SUMMERTIME page 7



July 16 | 6 p.m. Jerry Rigged (Bluegrass)

July 19 | 10:30 a.m. **KidjAM** Sqeals on Wheels Petting Zoo

July 23 | 6 p.m. U.S. Navy's Country Current (Country)

July 26 | 10:30 a.m. KidjAM Captain All-Star

> See the full schedule on page 8



Gates open: 7:30 p.m. | Movie starts: Dusk

June MVF Board meeting update

by Mike Conroy

The Montgomery Village Foundation (MVF) Board of Directors met on June 22 for their monthly business meeting to discuss a number of topics on the agenda, including recreation-related requests and updates to some community criteria.

Criteria for The Points neighborhood in Northgate were updated to allow front door accent colors, after consideration from the Northgate Homes Corporation and recommendation from the Architectural Review Board and Design Consultant. Northgate residents can access the revised criteria from their Member Dashboard at *www.montgomery*

In recreation-related items, the Board approved a bid for replacement of the North Creek Community Center floor for \$23,374 (plus additional funds for damaged subflooring and unforeseen expenses, if necessary) to Frederick Tile, Inc. The floor will be replaced with similar materials used for the Stedwick Community Center and Lake Marion Activity Room floors.

Based on recommendation from the Recreation Committee, the Board awarded a bid for the McKendree Playground replacement to Playground Specialists, Inc. The committee

See BOARD page 6

LOOK INSIDE

Independence Day 5K and Parade **Contest Results**



See page 12 & 13

Upcoming family fun: **Build a Birdfeeder** Workshop Aug. 6

See page 21

MVF Camps are having a blast.



See page 9

Contents

At Your Leisure19
Architectural Standards 14
Classifieds26
Community Service15
Homes Corporations16
Maryland Place Messages 18
Middle Village Voice 16
North Village View17
South Village Scenes18
Stedwick Signals17
Whetstone Watch16
In the News5
Kids Page22
Letters to the Editor5
MVF Board Agenda3
MVF Board Motions8
MVF Meeting Agendas2
MV Seniors23
Neighborhood Noteboard2
President's Message
Professional Directory25
Real Estate27
Recreation20
Services Around Town24
Sports19



Visit MVF online at www.montgomeryvillage.com facebook: MontVillageMD twitter: @MontVillageMD



GET STARTED AT WWW.MONTGOMERY VILLAGE.COM.



MVF MEETING AGENDAS

MVF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The MVF Board of Directors meeting is scheduled for 7:30 p.m. on Thursday, July 27 in the North Creek Board Room, 20125 Arrowhead Road.

ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD

The Architectural Review Board (ARB) meeting is scheduled for 5 p.m. on Wednesday, Aug. 2 in the North Creek Board Room, 20125 Arrowhead Road, to review residents' requests for exterior modifications. The board requests that homeowners contact the Foundation if they plan to attend and if their contractors will accompany them.

COMMERCIAL ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW COMMITTEE

The Commercial Architectural Review Committee (CARC) meeting is scheduled for 9:15 a.m. on Friday, July 14 in the North Creek Board Room, 20125 Arrowhead Road.

COMMUNICATIONS COMMITTEE

The Communications Committee meeting is scheduled for 7 p.m. on Wednesday, Aug. 9 at the MVF Office, 10120 Apple Ridge Road.

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Investment Committee meeting is scheduled for 7 p.m. on Monday, July 17 in the North Creek Board Room, 20125 Arrowhead Road.

Note: All meeting agendas listed in this section are current as of the deadline date for this publication. The listings do not include every agenda item. This information is also available on the MVF website at www. montgomeryvillage.com.





NEIGHBORHOOD NOTEBOARD

CENTER COURT CONDOMINIUM

The Center Court Condominium meeting is scheduled for 7:30 p.m. on Tuesday, July 25 in the Heron's Cove Office, 19101 Mills Choice Road.

CHRISTOPHER COURT LAND ASSOCIATION

The Christopher Court Land Association meeting is scheduled for 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, July 26 at the MVF Office, 10120 Apple Ridge Road.

EAST VILLAGE

The East Village Homes Corporation meeting is scheduled for 7:30 p.m. on Tuesday, July 18 in the North Creek Board Room, 20125 Arrowhead Road.

MARYLAND PLACE

The Maryland Place Homes Corporation meeting is scheduled for 7 p.m. on Wednesday, July 19 at the Whetstone Community Center, 19140 Brooke Grove Court.

MIDDLE VILLAGE

The Middle Village Homes Corporation meeting is scheduled for 7 p.m. on Tuesday, July 25 at the Thomas Choice Party Room, 19401 Brassie Place.

NORMANDIE ON THE LAKE I CONDOMINIUM

The Normandie on the Lake I (NOLI) meeting is scheduled for 7 p.m. on Thursday, July 19 at the NOLI Office, 18701 Walker's Choice Road #3.

PARK PLACE I CONDOMINIUM

The Park Place I Condominium meeting is scheduled for 7 p.m. on Thursday, Aug. 10 at the Gaithersburg Library, 18330 Montgomery Village Avenue. This meeting includes the Annual Meeting.

PARK PLACE II CONDOMINIUM

The Park Place II Condominium meeting is scheduled for 7 p.m. on Wednesday, Aug. 9 in the North Creek Board Room, 20125 Arrowhead Road. This meeting includes the Annual Meeting.

PATTON RIDGE

The Patton Ridge Homes Corporation meeting is scheduled for 7 p.m. on Tuesday, July 25 in the North Creek Board Room, 20125 Arrowhead Road.

SOUTH VILLAGE

The South Village Homes Corporation meeting is scheduled for 7 p.m. on Wednesday, July 26 at Stedwick Community Center, 10401 Stedwick Road.



Lake Marion Community Center, 8821 East Village Avenue Cost per camp per child: \$180/Resident, \$190/Non-resident

LEGO[®] STEM

LEGO	4007.301 Ages 5 to 7 Monday, Aug. 21. to Friday, Aug. 25 9 a.m. to noon	4007.302 Ages 8 to 12 Monday, Aug. 21. to Friday, Aug. 25 1 to 4 p.m.
Tiny Chefs	4007.305 Ages 5 to 7 Monday, Aug. 21 to Friday, Aug. 25 1 to 4 p.m.	4007.304 Ages 8 to 12 Monday, Aug. 21 to Friday, Aug. 25 9 a.m. noon
obrakad@dle°	4004.304 Ages 5 to 7 Monday, Aug. 28 to Friday, Sept. 1 1 to 4 p.m.	4004.309 Ages 8 to 12 Monday, Aug. 28 to Friday, Sept. 1 9 a.m. to noon.

Village News

Serving the residents of Montgomery Village

The Montgomery Village News is the official newsletter of the Montgomery Village Foundation, Inc., and its Board of Directors. Its purpose is to disseminate news and information in accordance with the Editorial Policy of the Foundation.

Publisher:

MVF Board of Directors Montgomery Village Foundation 10120 Apple Ridge Road Montgomery Village, MD 20886

Phone: 301-948-0110 FAX: 301-990-7071 MVF e-mail: *mvinfo@mvf.org* MV News e-mail: *mvnews@mvf.org* MVF 24-hour Board Voice Mail: 301-948-0110, press 5

Office hours:

The MVF Office, 10120 Apple Ridge Road, is open Monday -Friday from 8:30 a.m. to 5 p.m.

Asst. Executive Vice President Mike Conroy, 240-243-2331 mconroy@mvf.org Sales and Marketing Manager Humberto Benitez, 240-243-2359 hbenitez@mvf.org Communications Assistant Roz Price, 240-243-2339 rprice@mvf.org Graphic Designer Maria Pullifrone, 240-243-2321 mpullifrone@mvf.org Sales and Marketing Assistant Charity Gutierrez, 240-243-2342 cgutierrez@mvf.org

Website: www.montgomeryvillage.com

E-mail: mvnews@mvf.org

24-HOUR MVF

EMERGENCY PHONE: 301-576-1204 800-215-1784

Articles appearing in the *Montgom*ery Village News are presented as a community service. They do not necessarily represent the views of the Montgomery Village Foundation.

The advertisements in the *Montgom*ery Village News are not intended to be an endorsement by the Montgomery Village Foundation of any business or individual.



MVF Board of Directors

President Pete Young

Vice President Glenn Gargan Treasurer

Robert Carey

Directors Pamela Bort John Driscoll Scott Dyer Laura Franke Tammy Holloway Jim Marsh Peter Webb

Executive Vice President David Humpton

PRESIDENT'S MESSAGE

Celebration



by Pete Young MVF President

The summer heat is fully upon us, and this past week in particular was a scorcher. Thank goodness that we are blessed with so many ways to beat the heat in our community – the great pools, shaded walking paths, close by trails and parks and of course, the air conditioned shops, restaurants and homes we enjoy.

The current heat wave was not a problem for the July 4 Parade and Festival, though, and I was pleased to see so many friends and familiar faces there. As always, the parade is a celebration of not only our country's birth, but also a celebration of our community and the amazing residents we share this place with. I'd like to thank the MVF staff for once again creating a tremendous event and opportunity for us to share time with each other; these are some of the great traditions and times we can look

back on over the years as we create memories for ourselves and our children.

I would like to call your attention to the upcoming retirement of Peggy Mark from MVF—Peggy has served our community for 41 years, and her contributions are immeasurable. Peggy is the director of Recreation and Parks, and the July 4 Celebration is yet another reminder of the hard work and commitment she has given to us over these many years.

We all should celebrate the amazing career she has had with MVF; the many programs, camps, classes, park projects and life she has brought to the Village. She will be missed, and we all owe Peggy a debt of gratitude for the impacts she has had on us all. Feel free to take a moment to share with Peggy your thanks, appreciation and stories of her impact on you and your family.

As the summer continues, please take time to celebrate the many blessings we have, and as you spend time with your family and friends take a moment to recognize what a great community we all share.

As always, I invite you to get involved, share your talents and thoughts with us, and help Montgomery Village stay the amazing community it has been all these years. I welcome your feedback; please e-mail me at *peter@youngspa.com*. Cheers,

Pete

Schedule For 2018 MVF Budget Process

TUESDAY, AUG. 15

Audit Committee budget work session NCBR, 7 p.m.

THURSDAY, AUG. 24

- Presentation of 2018 Proposed Budget
 - SCC, 7 p.m.Joint Audit / Board meeting, followed by
 - regular Board meeting Approve proposed
 - budget for Publication

FRIDAY, SEPT. 8

- Village News
 Publish 2018 proposed budget on MVF website/ Village News
- 30-day public comment (if previously approved by MVF Board)

THURSDAY, SEPT. 28 Board Meeting,

 NCBR, 7:30 p.m.
 Opportunity for public comment on proposed budget

THURSDAY, OCT. 26 Board Meeting

- NCBR, 7:30 p.m. • Adopt 2018 Budget • Set 2018 Assessment
- Rates

NOVEMBER 2017 Notify owners of 2018 assessments

DECEMBER 2017

2018 assessment coupons mailed

NCBR

North Creek Board Room 20125 Arrowhead Road SCC

Stedwick Community Center 10401 Stedwick Road

MVF BOARD AGENDA

MONTGOMERY VILLAGE FOUNDATION, INC. BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING Thursday, July 27, 2017

North Creek Community Center - 7:30 p.m.

Residents Time – As a courtesy to fellow residents and the Board, please limit your remarks to no more than 3 minutes. During this time, residents are encouraged to offer suggestions and/or requests for the 2018 MVF Budget.

- 1. Call Meeting to Order
- 2. President's Remarks
- 3. Review and Approve Minutes of the Regular Meeting June 22, 2017
- 4. Treasurer's Report & Financial Statements
- 5. Executive Vice President's Report
- 6. Information Item 2017 Goose Count
- 7. Acceptance of Action List

ACTION LIST

Decision Items:

- A. Consider approval of revision of the Maryland Place Criteria (Addition of Elevated Deck Steps)
- Consider approval of revision of the Stedwick Clusters I, II, and III Criteria (Balcony Deck/Rail colors)
- C. Consider approval of MVF Transportation Priorities and authorize EVP to forward to the County Executive and County Council
- D. Consider new branding campaign proposal for Montgomery Village
- E. Consider program for the addition of Student
- Representative to MVF Board of DirectorsF. Consider proposal for replacement of Stedwick lights with LED fixtures

Committee Reports – barring any questions, these reports will be accepted as a group:

- A. Executive Committee
- B. Architectural Review Board (ARB)
- C. Audit
- D. Commercial Architectural Review (CARC)
- E. Committee on Environment (COE)
- F. Communications
- G. Election
- H. Nominating
- I. Personnel
- J. Recreation
- K. Investment Committee
- 8. Board Member Issues
 - . Vote on Closed Session Pursuant to Section 11B Real Property, of the Annotated Code of Maryland (Maryland Homeowners Association Act) to
 - (viii.) Discussion of individual owner assessment accounts.
 - (iv) Consultation with staff, personnel, consultants, attorneys, board members, or other persons in connection with pending or potential litigation or other legal matters.

10. Adjournment

Keep Montgomery Village Beautiful. Put litter and recyclables in their place.



	N	I O N T G C	MERY	VILLAG	E	
	Ca	lend	ar of	' Eve	nts	
Sunday	Monday	Tuesday	Wednesday	Thursday	Friday	Saturday
Y			16 Summers @ 19 KidjAM – Sq 23 Summers @ 26 KidjAM – Ca 30 Summers @	e – "The Secret Life of Pets" SVP – "Jerry Rigged" ueals on Wheels SVP – U.S. Navy	Village News 14 CARC 9:15 am – NCBR Dive-In Movie "The Secret Life of Pets" 7:30 pm – Stedwick Pool (Free with Activity Card; Guests: \$3/youth, \$6/adult)	1 Farmers' Market 9 am to 1 pm – CTS Lake Whetstone Dock Oper 11 am to 7 pm
16 Lake Whetstone Dock Open 11 am to 7 pm Summers at SV Park "Jerry Rigged" (Bluegrass) 6 pm – Bowie Music Pavilion	17 Investment Committee 7 pm – NCBR	18 East Village HC 7:30 pm – NCBR	19 Seniors in Action 10 am to noon – SCC KidjAM – Squeals on Wheels Petting Zoo 10:30 am – Bowie Music Pavilion Maryland Place HC 7 pm – WCC NOL I Condo 7 pm – NOL1 Office	20	21	2 Farmers' Market 9 am to 1 pm – CTS Lake Whetstone Dock Oper 11 am to 7 pm
23 Lake Whetstone Dock Open 11 am to 7 pm Summers at SV Park U.S. Navy Country Current 6 pm – Bowie Music Pavilion	24	25 Middle Village HC 7 pm – TCPR Patton Ridge HC 7 pm – NCBR Center Court Condo 7:30 pm – Heron's Cove Office		27 MVF Board of Directors 7:30 pm – NCBR South Village HC 7 pm – SCC	Village News 28	2 Farmers' Market 9 am to 1 pm – CTS Lake Whetstone Dock Ope 11 am to 7 pm
30 Lake Whetstone Dock Open 11 am to 7 pm Summers at SV Park "Diamond Alley" (Rock) 6 pm – Bowie Music Pavilion	31	August 1	2 Seniors in Action 10 am to noon – SCC ARB 5 pm – NCBR	3	4 Summers at SV Park Feature Friday – "Moana" Outdoor movie on the lawn 8 pm – Bowie Music Pavilion	Farmers' Market 9 am to 1 pm – CTS Lake Whetstone Dock Oper 11 am to 7 pm
6 Lake Whetstone Dock Open 11 am to 7 pm Build a Birdfeeder Workshop 2 to 3 pm – NC Nature Center (Pre-registration/\$10 required for each birdfeeder kit)	7	8	9 Seniors in Action 10 am to noon – SCC Communications Committee 7 pm – MVF Office Park Place II Condo 7 pm – NCBR (Annual Meeting)	10 Park Place I Condo 7 pm – Gaithersburg Library (Annual Meeting)	Village News 11	1 Farmers' Market 9 am to 1 pm – CTS Lake Whetstone Dock Oper 11 am to 7 pm

KEY: BMP......Bowie Music Pavilion (See South Valley Park) CTS.....Christ the Servant Lutheran Church, 9801 Cer

CTS Christ the Servant Lutheran Church, 9801 Centerway Rd. LMCC Lake Marion Community Center, 8821 East Village Ave. MVF Office..... 10120 Apple Ridge Rd.

TCPR...... Thomas Choice Party Room, 19401 Brassie Pl. WCC...... Whetstone Community Center, 19140 Brooke Grove Ct. WHPR...... Walker House Party Room, 18700 Walkers Choice Rd.

All facilities are handicap accessible. All information tentative and subject to change.

MONTGOMERY VILLAGE NEWS LETTERS TO THE EDITOR POLICY

1. The Montgomery Village News Letters to the Editor section is a community forum for Montgomery Village residents and/or property owners. In addition, at the Editor's discretion, the Montgomery Village News may print letters of appropriate interest to residents from others, including representatives of local schools, governments and businesses. Campaign letters are prohibited, except for Montgomery Village Foundation and Village homes corporation elections. The views expressed in the Letters to the Editor section are those of the authors of the letters and not necessarily those of the Montgomery Village Foundation (MVF) or its Board of Directors.

2. The *Montgomery Village News* will make every effort to publish all letters received during the weeks prior to publication.

3. Typed letters and e-mail must be received no later than 5 p.m. on the Monday prior to publication and distribution, while handwritten letters must be received no later than noon on the Friday, one week prior to publication. When a holiday occurs on a deadline Monday, Letters to the Editor must be received no later than noon on the subsequent Tuesday prior to the Friday publication and distribution.

 Letters must bear the writer's name, address and telephone number for verification purposes. The sole use of pen names, initials or the complete omission of a signature will eliminate a letter from consideration from publication. A request from the author to withhold the name or mark the letter anonymous will eliminate the letter from consideration.
 All letters are subject to condensation or deferral to the next issue by the editor for space considerations, if absolutely necessary. Editor is to so indicate any condensations.

6. All letters may not exceed 300 words. Longer letters will be eliminated from consideration for publication in the Village News. As time permits, the writers may be notified and given the opportunity to shorten the letter for future publication. Letters exceeding 300 words which meet all other criteria of this policy may be published on the MVF website.

7. The *Village News* respects the privacy of individuals and residents; letters should not contain references to specific persons, except when endorsing candidates for MVF or Village homes corporation elections or referencing a previously published article with a byline.

 Letters submitted by an author regarding the same topic must present new information or opinions; repetitive submissions and/or form letters submissions will only be printed once.

 The Letters to the Editor section is not a forum for extensive debates; MVF encourages residents to use other avenues such as facebook and twitter for timely discussion.

 All e-mail is subject to this policy. The e-mail subject line must read "Letter to the Editor."

• All e-mail letters must include the writer's full name, address and telephone number for verification.

• As with letters delivered to the MVF office in person or by the U.S. Postal Service, the *Montgomery Village News* will make every effort to publish all letters received prior to the publication deadline.

11. MVF retains the right to respond to letters to the editor addressing specific issues involving it in the form of editor's notes or other methods at its discretion, and extends the same opportunities to homeowner or condominium association boards regarding letters specifically aimed at those boards.

12. The Director of Communications, in his/her sole discretion, reserves the right to withhold from publication of inflammatory, slanderous, libelous, or lewd material, or material which may be an invasion of privacy, material deemed in bad taste and inconsistent with *Montgomery Village News* editorial policy, or other language which opens MVF to potential legal liability, and limit the number of letters on a given subject when the number is so large it presents a problem.

E-mail letters to mvnews@mvf.org.

Letters the Editor

Editor:

Everyone agrees that the loss of a very young human life in Lake Whetstone last month was a colossally sad and tragic event. It is overwhelming to simply think of the horror and the impact on the child's family.

However, Herbert Eisele, in his Letter to the Editor, puts much blame for the tragic accident on the natural vegetation that exists around Lake Whetstone. Dense vegetation around a waterbody-such as Lake Whetstone-actually acts as a safety measure, preventing adults or children from falling, tripping or stumbling into a lake. Furthermore, natural, native vegetation around streams, rivers and lakes (called riparian buffers) is extremely beneficial and valuable for shoreline stability, bird and wildlife habitat, and provides cooling shade to the shallow water at the lake's edge and for us humans who use the Lake Whetstone trail. Who can argue that diversity in shoreline vegetation height, shape, color and flowers is not aesthetically attractive and a source of beauty? Portions of the Lake Whetstone shoreline are required by State law to be cut to low heights to maintain the structural stability of the dam.

As a member of the Montgomery Village Committee on the Environment (COE), I work with my fellow COE members, and other concerned and interested Village residents, to enhance and protect the natural assets in our community, including lake-side and stream-side vegetation.

"Unsightly weeds and bushes" in the eyes of some are valuable landscape elements to the minds of environmentallyaware residents.

> Tim Goodfellow Breckenridge

Editor:

As a parent with two young kids, we love using the pools in the Village, especially Whetstone and the newly renovated Apple Ridge. Both of these pools are great for small children, but would be even better if they opened earlier than noon. Currently the only pool that opens before noon is Hurley Park. While we do take our kids there when we want an earlier start to the day, it would be great if some of the other pools could also open before noon.

10 a.m. would be perfect. This would allow those like myself with small children to utilize the pools that have the additional features for kids earlier in the day. Most kids are up early in the morning, and waiting around until noon to go to a pool other than Hurley Park is frustrating. If Whetstone and Apple Ridge could maybe alternate opening at 10 a.m. on the weekends throughout the summer, it would be a huge benefit to young families, and I know it would increase our use even more.

> Faith M. Zeff North Village

Editor:

In reading recent homes corporation columns in the *Village News*, Kehilat Shalom has noticed that the number of parking spaces versus the number of vehicles in communities continues to be a Village-wide issue. While we sympathize with those looking for additional parking, we would like to remind the community that the parking lot at Kehilat Shalom is private property. The lot is reserved for members of Kehilat Shalom, employees and/or their guests. Much like the private streets and parking lots in Montgomery Village communities, unauthorized vehicles parked in the Kehilat Shalom parking lot may be subject to immediate towing.

Thank you for respecting our private property. Michael Goldman

President, Kehilat Shalom





An engaged learning and early enrichment program for 3 and 4-year-olds

Creative Discovery 3's 4008.401 Mondays and Wednesdays | 9 a.m. to noon Sept. 11 to May 23, 2018

*64 class days ; no class when MCPS are closed; plus Winter Break – Dec. 22 to Jan. 2, Spring Break – March 23 to April 3

\$1,800/Resident: \$200 due at registration; \$200 due on first of each month Sept. through April

\$2,160/Non-resident: \$240 due at registration; **\$240 due on first of each month Sept. through April**

Creative Discovery 4's 4008.402 Mondays, Wednesdays, Thursdays | 9 a.m. to 1 p.m. Sept. 11 to May 24, 2018

*97 class days; no class when MCPS are closed; plus Winter Break – Dec. 22 to Jan. 2, Spring Break – March 23 to April 3

\$2,736/Resident: \$304 due at registration; \$304 due on first of each month Sept. through April

\$3,285/Resident: \$365 due at registration; \$365 due on first of each month Sept. through April www.montgomeryvillage.com

Whetstone Community Center | 19140 Brooke Grove Court

Board

Continued from page 1

considered several vendors, designs and play features before settling on the proposal put forth by Playground Specialists. A Reserve expenditure of \$45,000, plus an additional 10% for unforeseen expenses was approved for this project.

Playground Specialists was also awarded a bid for \$20,825 to the replacement of engineered wood fiber for park and designated user playgrounds. The 595 cubic yards of material is needed to maintain MVF-owned playgrounds to national playground standards for fall protection.

Revisions to the MVF Towing Policy to bring consistency between the policy and signage at MVF-owned properties were also approved. The Recreation Committee had previously held off on changes to the policy to make sure any further revisions to county laws were complete.

Finally, the Board authorized the EVP to enter into a 2-year contract for auditing services with DeLeon & Stang. MVF's previously contracted auditor, Draper & McGinley terminated their auditing services effective May 31, and DeLeon & Stang will honor the remainder of the previous contract.

PRESIDENT'S REMARKS

Board President Pete Young thanked staff for implementing and residents for attending the Apple Ridge Pool Ribbon Cutting Ceremony the night before. He noted that residents were enjoying all facets of the pool, and it was nice to recognize the many partners and individuals who were instrumental in bringing this project to fruition.

EVP REPORT

Executive Vice President Dave Humpton led discussion on the county's proposed shortterm rental legislation. General Counsel Christopher Hitchens provided background on the legislation and changes that had previously been made to address county resident concerns. The Board discussed the legislation, noting several concerns for parking, enforcement and emergency contact mechanisms. They were in agreement that they should support the legislation, provided it was able to incorporate language to properly deal with the identified concerns.

Humpton also noted the county council has been working for about a year on redeveloping its process to approve cell phone towers, especially smaller towers that can be placed in residential areas. A Zoning Text Amendment (ZTA) is being developed by the county and public hearings will be held once it is released. He noted the focus seems to be on placing the towers in county rights of way. MVF Staff will monitor this topic and relay updates and meeting announcements to the Board and community as they are announced.

TREASURER'S REPORT

In the absence of both the Treasurer and CFO, EVP Humpton gave the Treasurer's Report, noting MVF's continued solid financial position for both the month of May and the year-to-date (YTD). Humpton said that for both the month and YTD, MVF is ahead of budget projections.

Net Income was reported at \$899,000 YTD which is favorable to the budget by \$294,000, primarily due to investment returns, pool memberships, camps and classes and the Capital Contribution Fees. This is partially offset by lower than expected advertising revenue.

Personnel costs remain favorable to the budget due to earlier vacancies in full time positions and lower than expected seasonal wages; seasonal wages will increase in the coming months. Operating costs are \$195,000 favorable to the budget due to lower than expected costs across most cost centers.

Contributions to Reserves were made in accordance with the budget; \$90,830 for May and a total of \$454,150 YTD. The Balance Sheet reflects MVF's solid financial position showing \$7.6 million in Cash and Investments. Over \$1.5 million YTD was moved to Fixed Assets for the Apple Ridge Pool renovation; Humpton noted that the pool is now fully paid for.

Due to the success of the changes to the Collection Policy, Assessment Receivables continue to improve and keep delinquencies low. Humpton also noted the Operating Fund is maintaining a nearly \$2.2 million Undesignated Reserve balance.

NEXT MEETING

The next MVF Board of Directors meeting is scheduled for 7:30 p.m. on Thursday, July 27, in the North Creek Board Room, 20125 Arrowhead Road. The meeting begins promptly at 7:30 p.m. with Residents Time. Residents are invited and encouraged to attend the Board meeting. The meeting agenda and information packet will be available online at *www.montgomeryvillage.com* the week of the meeting.

MVF Financial Reports - May 2017

OPERATING FUND - STATEMENT OF INCOME & EXPENSE

	May 2017			YTD May 2017			
	Actual	Budget	Variance	Actual	Budget	Variance	
			(Unfav)			(Unfav)	
Revenue:							
Assessments	518,290	518,251	38	2,591,405	2,591,256	149	
Assessment Fees	(453)	4,108	(4,561)	89,012	102,603	(13,591)	
Transfer Fees	4,575	3,036	1,539	15,150	13,528	1,622	
Disclosure Fees	14,469	15,073	(604)	57,901	64,197	(6,296)	
Advertising revenue	5,827	16,330	(10,503)	44,243	59,284	(15,041)	
Pool Memberships/Rental Fees	20,613	11,345	9,268	46,515	37,507	9,008	
Camps & Classes	17,132	22,184	(5,051)	110,794	105,775	5,018	
Management Fees	66,458	65,934	525	332,297	329,668	2,628	
Capital Contribution fee	18,354	11,293	7,061	64,142	47,846	16,296	
Other Income	25,980	17,885	8,095	80,770	42,049	38,722	
Total Revenue	691,244	685,438	5,806	3,432,229	3,393,713	38,517	
Personnel Costs:							
Salaries & Wages	239,122	250,789	11,668	1,172,956	1,254,268	81,312	
Payroll Taxes & Benefits	73,286	78,799	5,513	371,712	392,589	20,877	
Personnel Costs	312,407	329,588	17,181	1,544,668	1,646,857	102,189	
Business Expenses	12,981	22,329	9,348	55,880	63,661	7,781	
Office Supplies	2,953	3,533	580	14,525	22,284	7,758	
Program/Maint Supplies	32,858	12,500	(20,359)	56,492	47,200	(9,293)	
Occupancy	31,260	24,244	(7,016)	104,908	112,584	7,677	
Office Expenses/Svc Contracts	20,074	23,700	3,626	138,666	132,545	(6,122)	
Equip Maintenance	1,022	2,250	1,228	10,233	10,700	467	
Vehicle Expenses	2,340	2.017	(323)	6,765	9,733	2.968	
Financial & Legal	7,175	8,304	1,129	53,557	62,025	8,468	
Insurance	11,738	12,178	440	39,085	32,495	(6,590)	
Printing	10,672	9,583	(1,088)	33,901	39,867	5,966	
Landscape/Maintenance	71,733	64,998	(6,735)	295,006	345,653	50,647	
Security	3,338	10,222	6,884	27,592	43,927	16,335	
Other	6	-	(6)	18	-10,027	(18)	
Operating Costs	208,151	195,859	(12,292)	836,629	922,674	86,045	
Operating Costs	200,151	195,659	(12,292)	830,629	922,074	86,045	
Contribution to Reserves	90,830	90,830	(0)	454,150	454,150	(0)	
Contribution to CCF	18,354	11,293	(7,061)	64,142	47,846	(16,296)	
Purchases of Assets	433	-	(433)	2,165	10,000	7,835	
Other Equity Transfers	-	-	-	-	-	-	
Reserve/capital	109,617	102,123	(7,494)	520,457	511,996	(8,461)	
Operating Expenses	630,175	627,570	(2,605)	2,901,753	3,081,527	179,774	
Excess/Deficit Revenue	61,069	57,868	3,201	530,476	312,186	218,290	

MVF BALANCE SHEET

For the Period Ended May 31, 2017

	Current	Prior Year
100570		
ASSETS		
Cash & Cash equiv	1,517,565	2,670,606
Investments	6,109,442	5,834,586
Due from Reserves	1,926,490	11,821
Assessment Receivables	578,271	726,129
Other Receivables	107,503	61,836
Current Assets	10,239,271	9,304,978
Gross Fixed Assets	14,934,254	13,927,027
Accumulated Depreciation	(6,239,092)	(7,403,501)
Fixed Assets	8,695,163	6,523,526
Other Assets	53,569	53,673
Assets	18,988,003	15,882,176
LIABILITIES & EQUITY		
Due to Operating	1,926,490	11,821
Payables	584,280	341,791
Sunstream Cap Lease	119,924	125,119
Deferred Revenue Liab	804,979	743,949
Liabilities		
Liabilities	3,435,672	1,222,679
Undesignated Reserves	9,826,226	8,739,381
Designated Reserves	5,726,101	5,920,112
Equity	15,552,327	14,659,493
Liabilities & Equity	18,988,003	15,882,176



For complete details and explanations, please refer to the Treasurer's Report in the MVF Board meeting packet which can be found online at www.montgomeryvillage.com.

Summertime

Continued from page 1

condominium residents also have use of their own community pools.

Or try Coffee-to-Go (early morning lap swimming) at Hurley Park Pool before or after a jog or bike ride along some of the trails throughout the Village; it's a good way to see how the Village "wakes up." If you're looking for a little more action before you jump in the pool, check out one of the tennis or basketball courts and challenge friends neighbors or other residents to a friendly game.

Need a bigger challenge? Check out The Amazing Race pool challenge! This fun activity styled after the popular television show has participants visit MVF pools and complete swimming tasks and trivia, competing against other individuals in the Village. Finish the game and claim a sweet prize – get the details from any pool manager!

You can easily reconnect with nature around one of the Village's lakes. Put a picnic lunch together and head on down to Lake Whetstone. Take a long walk around the lake and through the woods on the path, and end up back at the park area for your lunch. Make use of the new climbing features or rent a paddle boat or canoe in the afternoon and finish the day with a little fishing along the shore. In fact, you can make a day of visiting Lake Whetstone, North Creek Lake and Lake Marion - don't forget your camera, there's plenty

of unique and photogenic wildlife who call the Village home, too!

Or spend an evening at a free concert to help you relax. Every Sunday evening through July 30 features a different genre of music. Bring a chair or blanket and a dinner or your favorite snacks to Bowie Music Pavilion and listen to some great bands as the sun goes down. Join us at 8 p.m. on Friday, Aug. 4 for a special showing of Disney's "Moana" on the lawn under the stars. Bring some snacks and relax!

Also at the music pavilion are the Wednesday morning KidJam programs. Bring the kids to the pavilion at 10:30 a.m. for a great variety of fun and entertainment. Check out the petting zoo, comedy and music for your youngsters.

If you're looking for another weekend treat, check out the MV Farmers' Market every Saturday morning through Oct. 28. From 9 a.m. to 1 p.m. you can find fresh local produce, products and goods in the Christ the Servant Lutheran Church parking lot, 9801 Centerway Road. Check out market specials and winery visits online at www.mvfarmers market.com.

There's plenty more to enjoy around the Village, or ways to create your own fun and memories. To learn more about what you can find, or for information about specific events or activities, visit www. montgomeryvillage.com.



Robert Pence Remodeling, Inc.

33 YEARS IN MONTGOMERY VILLAGE

CertainTeed El Monogram Summer Sale

Premium Vinyl Siding, **Trim & Seamless Gutters**



FRIDAY, JULY 14, 2017

7

robertpenceremodeling.com 240-876-3492

HIGHEST RATING FROM: CHECKBOOK Angles list

ALSO CertainTeed **50 YEAR SHINGLES**

rpremodel@verizon.net



MHIC #19396

BBB

Competitive Rates -FDIC-Insured



Jane Warfield Daza, Agent State Farm Agent 19636 Club House Road Montgomery Village, MD 20886 Bas: 301-948-6061 Hablames Espeñol

2.30% APY* 1.70% APY*

Let me help you choose an FDIC-insured Certificate of Deposit from State Farm Bank® and watch your money grow. Bank with a good neighbor". AL ALTIGATION HOM INCOMPONENT

It's a beautiful thing.

State Farm Bank

FDIC

*Up to FDIC excaved limits. Annual Percentage Yields as of 2/15/17. Advertised release are subject to change at the Bank's discretion. The existiman balance required to earn the stated APY is \$500 trates apply to depends lieux than \$100,0005. A percently may be exposed for withdrawaits price to maturity.

State Farm Bank, F.S.B. Eleomurgton, IL

1001287.3



at the gordon w. Bowle music pavilion 19003 WATKINS MILL ROAD

Sunday Afternoons

The 2017 summer series consists of a mixture of concerts and other engaging activities for the community! Families are encouraged to relax with a picnic and blankets or lawn chairs to enjoy an eclectic assortment of entertainment.

July 16	6 p.m.	Jerry Rigged (bluegrass)
July 23	6 p.m.	U.S. Navy's Country Current
July 30	6 p.m.	Diamond Alley (rock/classic hits)



KidjAM Performers Wednesdays at 10:30 a.m.

One-hour Wednesday morning concerts for the younger set. Interactive entertainers will keep everyone happy with music, magic and mirth!



- Squeals on Wheels **July 19** Petting Zoo Captain All-Star
- **July 26**

Feature Friday



Plan to relax with your picnic and favorite beverage and enjoy this outdoor movie with your family.



www.montgomeryvillage.com

Parking for all South Valley Park events is available behind Watkins Mill Elementary School at 19003 Watkins Mill Road. Handicapped parking is available at the site by prior arrangement; call 301-948-0110.

MVF BOARD MOTIONS

MVF BOARD OF DIRECTORS MOTION LIST June 22, 2017

- 1. Mr. Gargan moved to approve the minutes of the regular Board of Directors' meeting held May 25, 2017 as presented. The motion was seconded and passed with all in favor; Mr. Marsh abstained.
- 2. Mr. Gargan moved to approve the minutes of the MVF Board Retreat held June 2-3, 2017 as presented. The motion was seconded and passed with all in favor; Mr. Marsh abstained.
- 3. Mr. Gargan moved to accept the Action List as presented. The motion was seconded and passed unanimously.
- 4. Mr. Gargan moved to approve a revision to The Points criteria to allow front door accent colors. The motion was seconded and passed unanimously.
- Mr. Driscoll moved to approve the revised Policy for Towing of Unauthorized Vehicles from MVF Owned Properties. The motion was seconded and passed unanimously.
- 6. Ms. Franke moved to award the bid for replacement of the North Creek Community Center floor to Frederick Tile, Inc. for \$23,374, and authorize up to \$6,000 for replacing damaged underlayment if needed, and authorize an additional 10% for any unforeseen conditions discovered upon removal of existing tile for a total of \$32,311. The motion was seconded and passed unanimously.
- 7. Ms. Bort moved to award the contract for the replacement of the McKendree playground to Playground Specialists for \$45,000 and to approve an additional 10% for unforeseen expenses for a total of \$49,500. The motion was seconded and passed unanimously.
- 8. Mr. Driscoll moved to award the bid for replacement of engineered wood fiber to the low bidder Playground Specialists for \$20,825. The motion was seconded and passed unanimously.
- 9. Ms. Franke moved to authorize the EVP to move forward with the record release from Draper & McGinley and to authorize the EVP to engage in a 2-year contract with DeLeon & Stang. The motion was seconded and passed unanimously.
- 10. Mr. Gargan moved to accept the committee reports. The motion was seconded and passed unanimously.
- 11.Mr. Gargan moved to adjourn the regular meeting at 8:27 p.m. pursuant to Section 11B Real Property, of the Annotated Code of Maryland (Maryland Homeowners Association Act) to go into closed session for (viii) Discussion of individual owner assessment accounts. The motion was seconded and passed unanimously.
- 12. Mr. Gargan moved to adjourn the regular meeting at 8:27 p.m. The motion was seconded and passed unanimously.

Rental Facilities in the Village

Looking for space to hold your party, celebration or sports practice? Look no further than Lake Marion or North Creek community center. Montgomery Village residents who pay the MVF fee are able to rent these centers for their non-alcoholic private parties or functions.

Lake Marion has a wood-floored room that can be rented for parties with a maximum capacity of 85 people. There also is a full-size gymnasium available for rent at Lake Marion.

North Creek is a tile-floored L-shaped room that may be divided into two smaller rooms with a maximum capacity of 125 people.

We are currently accepting rental requests for functions to be held through September 2017. Fees for these facilities begin at \$50 per hour and require a \$250 security deposit. Requests must be submitted at least three weeks in advance. Potential renters can obtain a copy of the "Procedures on the Private Use of Facilities" and the "Private Rental Request From" from the MVF Office, 10120 Apple Ridge Road or online at www.montgomeryvillage.com. Please remember that all functions must be non-alcoholic, and that the renter must be present the entire length of the rental.

For more information, call 301-948-0110.









Community discussion on Universal Pre-K

Did you know the return on investment of high quality Pre-K programs is \$7 for every \$1 invested in terms of academic achievement and future employment and earnings?

Montgomery County Councilmember Craig Rice and MCPS Superintendent Dr. Jack Smith invite residents to a community discussion on Universal

Pre-K scheduled for 6:30 p.m. on Wednesday, Aug. 23 at Richard Montgomery High School (Cafeteria), 250 Richard Montgomery Drive, Rockville. Join the discussion to learn more about Universal Pre-K.

Topic questions include: What would it look like in Montgomery County?

- How is it different from programs already in place?
- Why should we invest in it?

For more information, contact Councilmember Rice's office at 240-777-7955 or e-mail Councilmember.Rice@ montgomerycountymd.gov.



Christ the Servant Lutheran Church 9801 Centerway Road Montgomery Village, MD 20886

Saturdays the Oct. 28 9 a.m. to 1 p.m.

Featuring fresh farm products from:

Allen's Apiary **Barley Field Orchard Bushdogs Canela Bakery Carolina Squeeze** The Crepe Shoppe **Fetters Fruit Farm** Furnace Hills Coffee Co.

Killdeer Valley Cookies Master Freeman's Sauces Mom's Beauty Secrets **Pleitez Produce Rights of Man Farm** Stella's PopKern Valencia Family Produce Waltz Family Farm

www.mvfarmersmarket.com facebook.com/MV.Farmers.Market



Winery & Brewery Dates

Elk Run Vineyards Aug. 5, Sept. 2, Sept. 30 and Oct. 28

Great Shoals Winery July 22, Aug. 12, Aug 26, Sept. 9, Sept. 23 and Oct. 14

> Manor Hill Brewery July 15, Aug. 12, Sept. 9 and Oct. 14

Mully's Brewing Company July 22, Aug. 5, Aug. 26, Sept. 2, Sept. 23, Oct. 7 and Oct. 28

Ocean City Brewing Co. Aug. 19, Sept. 16 and Oct. 21

> Romano Winery July 15 and Oct. 21



Village residents ages 10 to 18 can visit the carriers page at www.montgomeryvillage.com or call 240-243-2342 for more information

Staying Aware in the Village

The following is information taken from the Recent News Summaries of the Montgomery County Police Department. The report is not a complete listing of every incident.

ARMED ROBBERY

An attempted armed robbery occurred in the area of Montgomery Village Avenue and Brassie Place at approximately 10:32 a.m. on June 7. Two suspects displayed weapons. The suspects assaulted the adult male victim and attempted to take his property. The suspects were arrested. Arrested: B/M, age 14, of an unconfirmed address

H/M, age 15, of Montgomery Village H/M, age 16, of Rockville

BANK ROBBERY

A bank robbery occurred at the Sandy Spring Bank, 9921 Stedwick Road, at approximately 2:18 p.m. on June 12. For more information and to view a photo of the suspect, visit www.mymcpnews.com/2017/06/13/detectives-investigatemontgomery-village-bank-robberysuspect-photographs-released/.

COMMERCIAL BURGLARY

A commercial burglary occurred at the Montgomery County Liquor and Wine Store located at 20004 Goshen Road in the early morning hours of May 31. Forced entry; merchandise was taken.

Suspect: H/M, age unknown

HATE CRIME

A noose was found hanging from a tree in the 18900 block of Mills Choice Road at approximately 8 a.m. on June 15.

RESIDENTIAL BURGLARY

An attempted residential burglary and a theft from vehicle occurred at the same residence in the 9800 block of Islandside Drive between approximately 10:30 p.m. on June 25 and approximately 7 a.m. on June 26. No force, unknown means of entry into the vehicle; nothing was taken.

SCHOOL BURGLARY

A school burglary occurred at Montgomery Village Middle School, 19300 Watkins Mill Road, at approximately 6:40 p.m. on June 18. Forced entry; property was taken. The suspects were arrested.

Arrested: B/M, age 17, of Montgomery Village W/M, age 17, of Montgomery Village W/M, age 18, of Gaithersburg

STRONG-ARM ROBBERY

A strong-arm robbery occurred in the 9900 block of Lake Landing Road at approximately 2:18 p.m. on June 10. The suspects assaulted the adult male victim and took his property.

Suspects: 2 B/Ms, ages unknown

THEFT FROM VEHICLES

Multiple thefts from vehicles occurred between May 30 and June 2. Affected streets included Stedwick Drive, Transhire Road, and North Kindly Court. No force, unknown means of entry into the vehicles; cash and property were taken.

MCP urges all residents to take a role in preventing this type of crime by removing valuables from vehicles and locking all doors.

Picnic Pavilion Rentals

Residents can now reserve picnic pavilions at Hurley Park and Apple Ridge Recreation Area for private functions. Permits will be required for use of the pavilions Friday through Sunday, and may be issued for weekday use through September 30 each year. Permits may be issued to residents who are in good standing, cost \$80 (with a \$100 refundable security deposit) and include access to a port-o-john.

Two time slots will be available: 9:30 a.m. to 2 p.m. or 3 to 7:30 p.m. Permit applications are available at the MVF Office, 10120 Apple Ridge Road, and online at *www.montgomeryvillage.com*.

Request for bids for Whetstone Community Center playground replacement project

Montgomery Village Foundation (MVF) is seeking bids from interested parties for performing all work in conjunction with Bid No. #17-MVFRP-104. MVF is seeking contractors with previous playground design and installation experience interested in providing services for the Whetstone Community Center playground replacement project, located at 19140 Brooke Grove Court, Montgomery Village, MD 20886. The selected contractor will remove the existing playground, provide complete design and installation of the new playground. Bids are due Friday, Sept. 1.

To request bid documents, contact Amy Roswurm at 240-243-2303 or e-mail *aroswurm@ mvf.org*.











Decorated Stroller 1st Alex Jiang 2nd Amanda Mettler

Decorated Tricycle/Big Wheel 1st Juan Hernandez 2nd Ryan Byrne

Motorized Toy Vehicle 1st Luis M. Vides

2nd Sophie & Christian Burakiewicz

Decorated Bicycle 4 to 8 years 1st Isabel Hernandez 2nd Liem Nguyen 3rd Ian Nguyen

Decorated Bicycle 9 years and older 1st Melanie Chacon 2nd Aidan Hall 3rd Lydia Jones

Hand-Pulled Float 1st Tung Heyun 2nd Tseng Family

3rd Jamie Kendrick

Motorized Float (* Tie for 1st place) 1st Whetstone Whales 1st North Creek Neptunes

Costume 5 to 10 years 1st Anna Scherhaufer 2nd Christian Burakiewicz

2nd Lake Marion Lasers

Performing Marching Group 1st Spitz-O-Matic Kids 2nd Montgomery Village Community Band

Top 3 Female Finishers

1st Tonya Dodge, 21:04

Marching Group (* Tie for 1st place) 1st Whetstone Whales 1st North Creek Neptunes 2nd Lake Marion Lasers

Community Banner/Sign (* **Tie for 2**nd **place**) 1st MVF Summer Camps 2nd Seniors in Action

2nd FOWL (Friends of Whetstone Lake)

5K Race Results

More than 130 enthusiastic runners and walkers of all ages participated in the July 4th 5K Race held on this humid, but thankfully cloudy holiday morning. Many were experienced racers, while others came in groups or families to run for the first time or for the great feeling of accomplishment just to have done it. Listed below are the winners by time, but every single participant walked away as a proud winner in his or her right. (Note that all times listed are Gun Times.)

Top 3 Male Finishers

1st Adam Taylor, 18:18



Men 18 and under 1st Zachary Zhao, 21:16 2nd Carter Ortiz, 26:34 3rd Matthew Almeida, 27:54

Women 18 and under 1st Danielle Carr, 26:30 2nd Caroline Walsh, 27:00 3rd Jain Bowerman, 41.38

Men 19 to 29 1st Gregory Milhiser, 22:54 2nd John Loftus, 25:11 3rd Reece Epley, 27:44



2nd Zachary Pepperl, 19:27

Women 19 to 29 1st Jenny Fifield, 26:09 2nd Raquel Canales, 27:48 3rd Sarah Leaman, 33:29

Men 30 to 39 1st Michael Mals, 22:52 2nd Philip Mills, 23:51 3rd Joseph McLeod, 23:58

Women 30 to 39

1st Kristin Farr, 28:21 2nd Michelle Walsh, 28:35 3rd Lindsey West, 30:15

3rd Argaw Kidane, 19:36



Men 40 to 49 1st Robert Palmer, 19:42 2nd Luis Navarro, 19:53 3rd Monte Lewis, 23:02

Women 40 to 49 1st Celina Raaf, 26:14 2nd Denise Muscatello, 26:54 3rd Nancy Carr, 27:26

Men 50 to 59 1st Frank Prusik, 22:59 2nd James Snee, 24:17 3rd Patrick Kuhn, 24:40



1st Kathy Cea, 25:54 2nd Susan Wilson, 33:59 3rd Veronique Cavaillier, 35.10

2nd Hallie Sharpless, 22:23

21

Men 60 and Older 1st Dan Lawson, 20:53 2nd Kerry Lanham, 24:01 3rd James Jones, 25:50

Women 60 and Older 1st Maria-Teres Gomez 35:16 2nd Linda Hallwig, 42:37 3rd Patricia Cuff, 47:28



3rd Megan Miller, 25:04



<u>1 Mile</u> Fun Run Results

Kids big and little, with and without parents, began the day's events with the one mile Fun Run/Walk. **Top 3 finishers:** 1st Santiago Bautista, 12:13 2nd Libby Carl, 14:02 3rd Karter Beugelsdijk, 15:01

Congratulations to all the winners!

Congratulations to all the runners. A complete listing of participants and their times is posted on the MVF website, *www.montgomeryvillage.com*; choose "5K Race" from the "Events" menu.

Thanks also to the BANG Power Dance instructors, who led an energetic warm-up for run participants prior to the start of the 5K Race. Watch for more of this fun group who plan to lead some MVF classes in the fall!



Corporate Sponsors - Atlantic Realty Companies (ARC) and BloominMV.com

Parade and Event Sponsors

Ambit Energy Bath Fitter Brusters Ice Cream Buffalo Wild Wings Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints Dick's Sporting Goods Festival Concessions Gaithersburg Garage Door

Gaithersburg/Washington Grove Volunteer Fire Dept. Georgetown Hill Gutter Helmet Systems Homefix Custom Remodeling Kehilat Shalom

Lake Marion Lasers

Ledo Pizza

MCPD 6th District Mont. County Democratic Party Mont. County Republican Party Mont. County Road Runners North Creek Neptunes Northgate Community Church Nu Look Home Design Renewal by Andersen of Maryland State Farm Insurance Talk of the Town Thompson Creek Window Company TW Perry Whetstone Whales



ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS



Architectural Standards

The Architectural Standards Department is here to answer your questions about making changes to the exterior of your property. Architectural Standards is responsible for approving exterior changes—anything from replacing a door to building a deck or shed, to additions on your home. Call Heather Sharpless at 240-243-2355 or e-mail *hsharpless* @*mvf.org* or Erika Hottinger at 240-243-2351 or e-mail *ehottinger mvf.org*. Questions may also be mailed to Montgomery Village Foundation, 10120 Apple Ridge Road, Montgomery Village, MD 20886, or faxed to 301-990-7071. Specific architectural standards criteria for each community in Montgomery Village are available at *www.montgomeryvillage.com*.

Architectural criteria change for The Points

At the June 22 Montgomery Village Foundation (MVF) Board of Directors meeting, the MVF Board approved a revision of the architectural criteria for The Points community in Northgate.

The original criterion for front entrance doors required the entrance door to be either the house siding or trim color. No accent colors were allowed.

Recently, the MVF Design Consultant, working with MVF staff and the Architectural Review Board, discussed allowing more options for front door colors in this community. The Design Consultant developed a front door color palette, which was approved by the Northgate Homes Corporation Board of Directors.

The palette is now available for The Points homeowners to view at the MVF Office, 10120 Apple Ridge Road, or on their Member Dashboard at *www.montgomery village.com*.





Member of Dance Masters of America, Inc. Certified by test to teach, B.S. Degree

Making additions to your yard

Montgomery Village as a planned community, has architectural rules that govern improvements to the exterior of residences. Homeowners should be aware that exterior modifications needing approval include objects placed on a permanent basis and equipment installations in both the front and back yards. While approval for most installations in front or back yards are approached on an individual basis by the Architectural Review Board (ARB), there are general guidelines that homeowners should consult for many of the most popular requests we receive. These guidelines can be found online at www. montgomeryvillage.com or at the MVF Office, 10120 Apple Ridge Road.

BASKETBALL UNITS

The installation of a basketball unit is one of the items that require prior ARB approval. Basketball backboards in back yards need to be positioned in such a way to have minimal impact on adjacent properties and may require screening with foliage. The driveway is still the most popular location for basketball units, and they need to be located at the side of the driveway, $1/_3$ of the distance from the house, if not mounted on the garage.

CABANAS, GAZEBOS AND FREESTANDING SHADE STRUCTURES

Cabanas and other freestanding shade structures also require ARB approval. Their approval will depend on the type of house, and the impact the structure will have on the neighbors. Cabanas and gazebos are approved only in rear yards, should be a neutral color and should be sturdy in appearance.

DECK STAINING

Fresh pressure-treated lumber should weather out for a few months before staining to allow the oils used in the milling of the wood to disintegrate and the stain to properly penetrate the wood.



PLAY GYMS AND TRAMPOLINES

Requests for rear yard play equipment will be reviewed on an individual basis, taking into consideration the proposed location, size, lot configuration, color and impact on the adjoining neighbors. Play equipment will be approved only in rear yards and should be natural in color to blend into the natural surroundings. On larger, single-family lots, two-story play gym units may be approved but should be as open as possible to have as minimal an impact as possible. The number of play equipment items will depend on the size of the lot and proximity to neighboring properties.

HOT TUBS

Hot tubs or spas will be considered by the ARB when

located in the rear yard or in an enclosed area. Screening will be required depending on the location of the hot tub or spa, and may include evergreens, privacy fencing or a combination of both. Where there is an elevated deck, the tub or spa recessed into deck or under the deck is preferred. Tubs or spas must also have wood skirting around the base. Homeowners should also note that within townhouse communities, hot tubs or spas will be approved only if the yard is completely fenced.

As always, if you have a question or need more information about the application process, you can visit *www. montgomeryvillage.com*, call 301-948-0110 or e-mail *ehottinger* @*mvf.org* or *hsharpless@mvf.org*.





COMMUNITY SERVICE

A new Eagle Scout in our community

by Sam Henry, First Class Scout

On April 1, Sawyer Conklin, a Boy Scout in Troop 1988, finished his Eagle Scout project. For his project, he assembled a group of scouts to make some signs and other things for Circle of Hope Therapeutic Riding in Barnesville. His project consisted of at least 20 hours of service and definitely the willpower that a scout needs to succeed.

Being an Eagle Scout is a huge honor. It shows not just your peers, but yourself, how hard you have worked to get there. You have to go through many different ranks, complete a large number of requirements and achieve multiple merit badges. But most importantly, vou have to become a leader. You have to become someone who leads service projects that involve time and effort. An Eagle Scout also needs to lead the other scouts in his troop to get where he wants.



All of Troop 1988 congratulates Sawyer on his big service project. But even more importantly, we congratulate him on the honor of becoming an Eagle Scout. A lot of us have seen how far he has come. We are all happy to watch him finally gain the honor of being an Eagle Scout.

Boy Scout Troop 1988 meets weekly on Thursdays (September through the end of the school year) at 7:40 p.m. at Stedwick Community Center, 10401 Stedwick Road. For more information, visit http://bsatroop1988.org/welcome/ visitors, or join us at our weekly meeting.







The Montgomery Village Foundation, Inc., Department of Recreation, Parks and Culture, in conjunction with the Maryland Recreation & Parks Association, is selling discounted tickets to area amusement parks at the Foundation office, 10120 Apple Ridge Road. Payment for these tickets must be made in person at the Foundation office and will be accepted in cash or by credit card. The prices are as follows:

Busch Gardens\$59
Diggerland\$25
Dorney Park Adult \$43
Dutch Wonderland\$37 🍞
Hershey ParkAdult \$52
Jr. (Ages 3 to 8) \$40
King's Dominion\$37 (Summer Fun Days – through Aug. 20)
Sahara Sams\$26
Sesame Place\$57
Six Flags America\$35 (Special Day – through Aug. 20)
Six Flags Great Adventure (New Jersey)\$43
Hurricane Harbor\$33 🧧
Water Country\$36
Water Country Dorn

USA





Putting you first made us #1.

Jame W Daza Ins Agency Inc. Jame Warfield Daza, Aaml 19616 Chib House Road Montplemery Village, MD 20886 Bio: 901-948-6061 Hackemos Español Making you our #1 priority is what's made State Farm" #1" in auto insurance. I'm here to listen to your needs and to help life go right. CALL ME TODAY.

"Bamil or writer trensies as strooms to 5% Francis 2014



State Farm Malacel Assessments in second Commony. State Tarm Index of V Common Biogeneous, II

1001012 Vitro Jame Contry Multan Imperation Company of Trace 3002012 Vitro James 19



HOMES CORPORATIONS <u>& CONDOMINIUM</u> <u>ASSOCIATIONS</u>

Homes corporation and condominium association articles are provided by representatives or board members from the corporations and associations. The information and opinions provided within these articles do not necessarily reflect the views of the Montgomery Village Foundation, its Board of Directors, representatives or staff. Residents with specific questions or concerns about the information contained in these articles should contact their community manager or the author of the article.

New Welcome Committee

by the Whetstone Board of Directors

At the suggestion of a recently-arrived Whetstone resident, the board has approved the creation of a Whetstone Welcome Committee to help new residents settle into our community. Our 50-year-old community has been turning over lately as long-time residents downsize, so it seems appropriate to devote some time to ensuring that our new neighbors are warmly welcomed to Whetstone.

Judy Landry has graciously offered to chair the committee. Members are Aleta Maxwell, Whetstone President Debby Vermillion and Whetstone board member, Sharon Cranford.

The new committee plans to meet one-on-one with new residents to offer information on our wonderful community. A revised Residents' Handbook is being prepared along with a quick reference sheet on days for recycling and trash collection, important websites and phone numbers and other pertinent information. We also plan to explain the importance of reading each issue of the Village News to keep up with activities in Whetstone and in the Village. We will also be encouraging our new residents to take advantage of the many amenities and programs Montgomery Village offers to residents of all ages.

BUDGET 2018

While Whetstone residents have been enjoying summer vacations, the Whetstone board has been working on next year's budget. There has not been an increase in the assessment ceiling in more than 5 years, so this is something that is under consideration. It is important that we maintain our 50-year-old community with its many mature trees, extensive green space, bike paths and 5 miles of streets. The proposed 2018 budget will be published in draft form in a September issue of the *Village News*.

MAINTENANCE MATTERS

Baker Tree Service will begin tree removals the week of August 7. Residents living near affected trees will be notified by postcard. An RFP for tree pruning has been sent out for bids. Also being sent out are an RFP for the construction of the replacement for the North Dock and RFPs for asphalt and concrete work.

The top tier of gabion baskets recently installed on the lake shore edge near Freestate Place will be removed and placed in another spot where erosion is threatening the lakeshore path. The idea is to protect the lakeshore from further erosion and have the baskets stand level with the current path; the two-tiered installation was deemed too tall.

NEXT MEETING

The Whetstone board does not meet in August. The next board meeting is scheduled for 7:30 p.m. on Thursday, Sept. 14 in the North Creek Board Room, 20125 Arrowhead Road. Residents time, when residents can come to address the board on any matters of interest or concern, begins promptly at 7:30 p.m. This meeting is open to the public and we hope to see you there.

Whetstone Watch: for residents of The Courts, Goshenside, Lakeside and the Ridges of Whetstone.





MIDDLE VILLAGE VOICE

Bulk trash pickup not available after August 1

by the Middle Village Board of Directors

Effective Tuesday, Aug. 1, bulk trash pickup will no longer be available for Middle Village residents. Residents who live on Ridgeline Drive, Brassie Way, Brassie Court and Brassie Place (Clubside and Thomas Choice West) will need to find alternatives for their bulk trash removal. Bulk trash includes furniture, mattresses, box springs, construction materials, wood, metal, appliances, toys, etc.

The decision was made by the Middle Village Board of Directors to end bulk trash pickup due to the continued violation of the bulk trash policy. Numerous residents set out bulk trash daily, instead of once a week as outlined in the policy. Due the large volume of bulk trash, the cost to have it collected and the fact that bulk trash attracts rodents and lowers the property values, it was decided that residents will now be responsible for disposing of their own bulk trash.

Residents can take bulk trash to the Shady Grove Transfer Station, 16101 Frederick Road, Derwood, from 7 a.m. to 5 p.m., Monday through Saturday.

Items the transfer station accepts include:

- metal appliances and other large scrap metal items
- small scrap metal itemsbuilding materials in
- usable conditionclothing and shoes
- commingled ("blue bin") materials
- cans
- glass bottles and jars
 plastic bottles, containers, tubs and lids
- electronics
- fluorescent, LCD and LED bulbs and tubeshazardous waste (fees
- may apply)mixed paper and card-
- boardbulky rigid plastics

- yard trim (grass, leaves, brush) up to 6" in diameter (fee-based)
- rechargeable batteries
- motor oil
- antifreeze
- propane cylinderstires

Any resident dumping bulk trash on Middle Village property after August 1 will be fined \$250.

TRASH AND RODENTS

Trash and rodents continue to be an ongoing problem in Middle Village. If you are one of the residents who places trash out in plastic trash bags or trash cans without a closed lid, you are contributing to the rodent problem. To get rid of rats and mice, we must starve them and get rid of the food source.

If you see a resident(s) placing trash out in plastic bags or a trash can without a top, call ComSource and report them! There is a \$25 reward for picture or video proof of violations to the trash policy that identifies the violators. Picture or video proof, which includes the address of the violator or other identifying information, is required to collect a reward, and some restrictions apply. All reports will remain anonymous. Residents who place trash out in plastic bags will be fined \$100.

If your trash can is overflowing, purchase an additional trash can with a lid. If you have bags of trash in your yard, put them in a trash can with a lid. If your neighbors have trash in their yard, report them to ComSource. We are not trying to create an atmosphere where we tell on our neighbors, but we have to eliminate the problem – trash – to get rid of the rats.

SHOPPING CARTS

Shopping carts are being removed from the neighboring stores in the shopping center and being left in the Middle Village community. Do not remove any shopping carts from the shopping center—it is illegal. If you have shopping carts in your possession, return them to the shopping center.

ASSESSMENTS

We live in a community that requires every homeowner to pay assessment fees. Assessments are used to pay contractors for landscaping, snow removal, trash collection, collection of illegally dumped trash, lighting, repairs on community property, etc. If you are a homeowner, you were provided with this information during closing.

Reminder: Assessments are due monthly. Your payment must be received by Comsource on or before the 15th of the month to avoid late charges. Your regular payments allow us to continue providing services to our community.

Homeowners who are delinquent with their assessment payments must pay their past due balance in full or make arrangements to pay them. The first step to making payment arrangements is contacting Delphine Matthews at Comsource at 301-924-7355 or e-mail *dmatthews@comsource. com.*

CONTACTING COMSOURCE

ComSource is our management company. If you have a comment or complaint, please include your name, address, phone number, location of issue/problem and specific details in your correspondence or when you are leaving a phone message for the property manager. Contact ComSource at 301-924-7355 or e-mail *dmatthews@comsource.com* or *sumali@comsource.com*.

The next MVHC board meeting is scheduled for 7 p.m. on Tuesday, July 25 at the Thomas Choice Clubhouse, 19401 Brassie Place.

Middle Village Voice: for residents of Thomas Choice West and Clubside.

HOMES CORPORATIONS

STEDWICK SIGNALS

Can Stedwick be a more secure neighborhood?

by Sam Korper

Security is much on the mind of late. Great neighborhoods put community participation and communication together, encouraging human contact and social activities, promoting community involvement and maintaining a secure environment (www.planning. org/greatplaces/neighborhoods/ characteristics.htm).

In his thoughtful June 23 "Stedwick Signals" article, Wayne Rowland reminded us that "Every day we participate in our community whether we mean to or not." A week earlier, at a heavily attended community meeting, Montgomery County Police 6th District Commander Dinesh Patil suggested that "MV residents know what's right and wrong in your neighborhoods" and urged calls to police to report on security-related matters when they notice unusual activity or a possible problem no matter how seemingly unimportant..."your call could make a difference."

So, individually or together intentional or unintentional – we can and do make a difference. Face-to-face encounters (46%) and phone calls (21%) remain the most frequent means of interacting with our neighbors (though amazingly, that same survey finds that 28% may know none of their neighbors (http://pewinternet. org/2010/16/09/neighbors-online/).

Of course, over time, much has changed, with the internet and cell phones replacing direct conversations of the past. This "social-networking," a term used to describe connecting community residents (once termed "neighbors"), enhances opportunities to make neighborhood connections-individually or in groups.

Throughout the country, and here in Montgomery County, several approaches to enhancing security have been developed and tested. Two examples are "Nextdoor" and "Neighborhood Watch."

Nextdoor is a free and private social network for small areas, mostly within neighborhoods. Nextdoor now has nearly 1,300 participating neighborhoods around the country, each meant only for the people who live there. City officials can't even peek at the conversations on the site unless they happen to live there. Similar to Facebook, Nextdoor members post comments and updates to a neighborhood news feed, sending out alerts and identifying concerns for neighborhood resident discussion and possible action (www.nextdoor.com).

Established in 1972, and sponsored by the National Sheriffs' Association (NSA), citizens participating in Neighborhood Watch organize themselves and work with law enforcement to keep a trained eye and ear on their communities, while demonstrating their presence day and night (www.nnw.org and www.ncpc.org).

At the recent community meeting, Commander Patil emphasized the importance of organized neighborhood approaches and resident reporting (see:"6th District Commander addresses resident concerns about crime," MV News, June 23, 2017). The idea is that neighbors be alert, observant and caring – and to report suspicious activity or crimes immediately to the police. Watch groups are not vigilantes and do not assume the role of the police. Neighborhood Watch works because it reduces opportunities for crime to occur.

Combining communication with participation to affect our security takes effort. It begins with volunteers working with the county police to get things started. Regular meetings help residents get to know each other and to decide upon program strategies and activities. For example, residents might participate by canvassing door-to-door to recruit members and to ask people who are often home to be "window watchers," looking out for children and reporting any unusual activities in the neighborhood. Start a block parent program to help children cope with emergencies while walking to and from school or playing in the area. Watch groups can sponsor neighborhood cleanups, encourage residents to beautify the area and ask them to turn on outdoor lights at night.

These are only a few ideas. Do you have more? Do we want to begin the process of moving from the few existing informal groups to a more formal Neighborhood Watch effort? Share your thoughts. Let the Stedwick board know.

As always, the Stedwick board invites your comments - either in writing or by presentation-during the residents time portion at the beginning of every monthly Stedwick board meeting. If you have suggestions, questions or concerns, please contact our Stedwick Homes Corporation community management team at 240-243-2326, e-mail stedwickhc@ *mvf.org* or consult our community website, www.stedwick.org. Meetings begin at 7:30 p.m. on the third Wednesday of each month at the Stedwick Community Center, 10401 Stedwick Road.

Stedwick Signals: for residents of Club Hill, Clusters of Stedwick I, II, III, Forest Brooke, Frenchton Place, Ridges of Stedwick and The Heights.

NORTH VILLAGE VIEW

North Village budget meeting

by the North Village Board of Directors

Your board of directors will be meeting to work on the 2018 budget for the homes corporation at 6:30 p.m. on Thursday, July 20 at the Montgomery Village Foundation Office, 10120 Apple Ridge Road. The outcome of this meeting will be a draft budget for 2018. This draft will be refined over the next few months as we get more definitive information on contracts, county and state fees, insurance and maintenance costs. The final budget must be approved by a vote of the board of directors at their November meeting.

Budget work is always a challenge. Our current 2017 budget is slightly over \$614,000. The board was able to hold the 2017 increase in assessments to 1.6%, which is the lowest increase in the last five years. The board tries to minimize any increase in assessments while including funds to cover increases in our major service contracts for landscaping, security and trash removal. Assessments cannot exceed the ceiling established by our founding covenant. The ceiling derives from our first budget and allows for an increase amounting to the increase in the Baltimore-Washington Metropolitan Area Consumer Price Index (CPI) in the prior July to August to July to August period.

Also, our contributions to reserves must keep pace with the recommendations of our reserve study. Fortunately, after the repaying of McRory and Salem's Grant, our streets are in pretty good shape overall. Trees continue to deteriorate and die from age, drought, storms and disease, and fences keep reminding us how fragile they are. Our grass needs more fertilization than we've been able to provide on top of our standard mowing contract. And we'd all like to see some additional beautification ef-

We are drafting the 2018 budget with the above in mind. We'd appreciate your input to the budget process; tell us your priorities. Also, keep in mind that North Village Homes Corporation is always looking for new board members. Please notify us if you are interested in contributing some of your time and talent to the management of our community.

TRASH AND

Trash is becoming a big problem in our communities. Inconsiderate people are dumping trash on community

property with no concern for the appearance of the community. We have to pay our contractor to haul the trash away and this is putting a strain on our budget. We increasingly see construction material, paint cans, car parts, appliances and TVs routinely dumped on common areas. These residents should take these things to the county dump or call our trash contractor, Potomac Disposal at 301-294-9700, for free bulk pickup.

Concerning recycling, we noticed many recycling "blue boxes" out on the curb a day early after the July 4 holiday. Once again we need to remind people that if a county holiday falls during the week (Monday through Friday), all recycling collections scheduled on or after the holiday will be made one day later that week.

BEING AWARE

As you have read in the newspapers, there have been a number of serious criminal activities in and around the Village in the past several months. We want to remind all residents to be on "unofficial" neighborhood watch and to be alert, vigilant and not afraid to call 911, the Montgomery County Police (301-279-8000) and our security service, American Protective Services (240-631-8383), when they see criminal or dangerous threatening behavior. We certainly want to keep such activity out of our community.

ASSESSMENT PAYMENTS

Please remember that your quarterly assessment payment was due July 1. We still have not heard from a number of residents. If you are one of those residents who forgot to make your payment, you still have until Monday, July 31 to make your payment before a penalty is imposed.

NEXT MEETING

The next board meeting is scheduled for 7 p.m. on Thursday, Aug. 17, in the North Creek Board Room, 20125 Arrowhead Road. If you have any questions or want to report any problems, call Community Manager April Steward at 240-243-2344, or e-mail asteward@ mvf.org.

North Village View: for residents of Essex Place, Highland Hall, McRory, Perry Place, Picton, Pleasant Ridge and Salem's Grant.





Gaithersburg, MD 20879

M-F 6AM to 5PM SAT 7AM - 3PM

301-840-9600 - www.twperry.com

RECYCLING PICKUP

HOMES CORPORATIONS

Attention homeowners!

by the Maryland Place Board of Directors

It has been brought to our attention and verified during community inspections that there is a considerable trash problem in Maryland Place. We are asking that the community work together to combat this problem. The cumulative impact of illegal dumping can have a devastating impact on our community.

Illegal trash dumping is a persistent problem that costs money and creates a bad impression to neighbors and visitors of the community. In addition to being unsightly, unauthorized dumping also can become breeding grounds for mosquitoes and rats. Dumping waste such as discarded trash, oil, appliances, scrap tires, furniture and other items on private or public land is strictly prohibited by state law and the Maryland Place Homes Corporation rules and regulations. Each homeowner is entitled to four bulk pickups a year by calling 1-800-465-2350.

The Maryland Place Homes Corporation budget and your home value is severely affected by the cost to clean up illegal dumping. Maryland Place will be charging the owners of the trash dumped on the common space for the removal, plus a fine.

Common examples of illegal dumping:

- Placing bags of trash in the common area.
- Not storing trash in a vermin proof container.
- All trash should be picked up by the trash company from the rear

of your home on Mon-

- day and Thursday.
 Improperly disposing of yard waste (leaves, grass clippings, brush and natural wood waste) by throwing it over your fence or dumping it in a nearby wooded area.
 - Violators of these policies may be subject to Montgomery County enforcement or homes corporation charges. In cases where the homes corporation incurred costs to correct a violation, the owner of the unit may be declared out of good standing with the homes corporation until the incurred costs are repaid to the homes corporation. Any offender shall be afforded a hearing before the Maryland Place Board of Directors before being declared out of good standing.

standing. Any cost incurred by the homes corporation will be charged to the owner of the unit in violation. No administrative fees shall be added to the fees charged.

Please remember that when living in such close proximity to others, we must make every effort to keep our community free and clear of trash and debris. We need everyone's help to make Maryland Place beautiful!

Maryland Place Messages: for residents of Maryland Place.

SOUTH VILLAGE SCENES

Improvements in your community

by the South Village Board of Directors

South Village is making progress against a list of improvements to our physical plant. New traffic calming measures, street and sign repairs and concrete work top the visible list of improvements. The board is working in cooperation with its management agent and contractors to bring improvements in a fiscally responsible schedule.

Believe it or not, we can't just cut repair orders immediately. In order to make sure we're spending your money wisely, we need to consider the cost, priority and disruption caused by any action, and that takes at least one meeting cycle, assuming we have all the required information up front. In some cases, the board has to solicit multiple bids-required by law, but even more by good governance. It's a process that can sometimes seem frustrating and slow, but we do it for very good reasons.

LIFE IN THE COMMUNITY

We're in the height of summer, and that means vacations and entertaining. It also means increased outdoor activity of all types. It never hurts to reinforce some basic suggestions about living together at close quarters:

Noise: Sharing your favorite tunes is fine, but not at high volume or late hours. Please be considerate of your neighbors. Sometimes that awesome subwoofer means that you shake your neighbor's furniture even two doors away. Please be considerate.

Animal waste: Many dog walkers are responsible, but not all. Please pick up after Fido or Fifi. In addition to helping control unwelcome waste, you're also complying with Montgomery County law.

Dog walkers: Please remember that many of your fellow residents may not share your love of canine exercise. Be courteous and allow fearful pedestrians to pass. Don't walk an aggressive or difficult dog at peak traffic times. Be willing to yield to other dog walkers and give them a break if you suspect that your four-legged friend won't get along with their darling dog.

Wildlife: While living next to Lake Whetstone provides opportunities to enjoy the wide variety of wildlife that share our community, please remember that it's against the law to remove or harm our wild neighbors. Fishing may be legal (though there are local regulations), but taking home wild creatures from ducklings to baby turtles is not just illegal, it's wrong. Please, if you want to co-exist with the wildlife, don't try to keep specimens at home-leave the wildlife in its natural habitat.

Runners/Joggers: Please remember that you share the path with seniors, dog walkers and other pedestrians. It's better to slow your pace just a little to pass; and while enjoying your favorite audio book or music library while running can be wonderful, don't let it reduce your awareness of traffic or other people with whom you share the path, sidewalk or road.

Bicyclists: Much as you might want to qualify for a race using our sidewalks and paths, it's really not the right thing to do. Running over walkers, wildlife or other cyclists is just asking for problems.

Children at play: Sadly, there aren't a lot of community spaces in South Village that are suitable for playing children. If your children are playing outside, we encourage awareness and oversight. It doesn't mean you have to be an overbearing "helicopter parent." But safety comes in part with the need for vigilance and the requirement to teach kids about the risks of playing in an urban setting. Also, please remind your little darlings that the wildlife are not toys, and should be left in peace.

Garbage/Waste: There's a reason county law specifies that trash should be left outside in closed containers. Yes, it discourages rodents and other vermin, but it also cuts down on leftover litter in the community and quite frankly, bad smells on a hot summer morning. Please cooperate.

South Village Scenes: for residents of Center Stage, Dockside, Grover's Forge, Hamptons, Millrace, Nathan's Hill and Walker's Choice.

Please be a responsible pet owner...

Montgomery County law states that you must keep your dog on a leash and pick up and properly dispose of your dog's defecation when outside of your premises.



SHARE YOUR Village News GOOD NEWS WITH THE VILLAGE





Close to Home

Summer Entertainment

Looking for summer entertainment close to home? Check out these offerings from the City of Gaithersburg!

FAIRGROUNDS FLEA MARKET

grounds Flea Market on Saturdays and Sundays this summer

at 8 a.m. to peruse vendor booths selling antiques, crafts,

collectibles, books, household items, art, jewelry, tools, cloth-

ing, electronics and other new/used items. Free admission!

a 20-foot space, deep enough to park car or van. Bring your

own tables, chairs and/or tent. Vendor setup starts at 7 a.m.

For additional information, call 301-649-1915 or visit www.

ARTS ON THE GREEN Throughout the year, the Arts on the Green performing arts program presents plays, musicals, theatre for young audiences, one-act plays and magic shows at the Arts Barn,

'Dial M for Murder" is on stage now through Sunday,

July 23 on Fridays and Saturdays at 8 p.m. and Sundays at 2 p.m. A retired tennis pro plots the murder of his own wife,

but when she turns the tables on her attempted assailant, she

is convicted of murder. Can the police detective who brought

OUTDOOR PERFORMANCES

outdoor performances each summer. Programs include

entertainment for children, a gospel celebration, weekend

family concerts, featuring everything from jazz and blues

to rock and roll and occasional theatrical performances. The Concert Pavilion is located at 31 South Summit Avenue, Gaithersburg, with parking in the garage located across

Upcoming Concert Pavilion performances include:

Thursday Morning Kids Concert - Mark Jaster

Evenings in Olde Towne - The Fringe Benefits

Thursday Morning Kids Concert - Billy B.

Evenings in Olde Towne - East of Monroe

Summit Avenue at 112 Olde Towne Avenue.

Thursday, July 20 10:30 to 11:30 a.m.

Thursday, July 27

10:30 to 11:30 a.m.

6 to 7:30 p.m.

6 to 7:30 p.m.

Tickets are \$20 for adults and \$12 for youth (14 and

The City Hall Concert Pavilion is home to dozens of free

her to trial now decipher the clues that will save her life?

311 Kent Square Road in Gaithersburg.

Vendor information: all spaces are outdoors; \$25 fee for

Visit the Montgomery County Fairgrounds for the Fair-

johnsonshows.com.

under).

SPORTS

MVSA Chiefs Football and Cheer

The Montgomery Village Sports Association (MVSA) youth football and cheerleading programs are currently registering new participants for the 2017 season.

The Chiefs Football program is a Division "A" Program, which has won over 40 championships in the last decade, including back-to-back Division "A" Maryland State Championships. Registration is open for youth ages 5 to 14; for registration information, visit http://montgomeryvillage sportsassociation.siplay.com.



Practice begins on Monday, July 24 at South Valley Park, 19003 Watkins Mill Road. For more information, e-mail MVSA Football Commissioner Quintin Cosby at *qdcosby*@ *yahoo.com*.

Chiefs Cheerleading is accepting registration for girls ages 5 to 14. Fall registration fees include cheer competition. A 2-week cheer camp is also available, from 6 to 8 p.m., Monday, July 17 to Friday, July 28 also at South Valley Park. For more information, e-mail *tashelee.reyes@gmail.com*.

Athletes of Tomorrow Speed, Strength and Agility camp

The Montgomery Village Sports Association (MVSA) is hosting a free Speed, Strength and Agility camp specifically designed to prepare young athletes (boys and girls ages 6 and older) for all sports. Participants will be taught different fundamental drills of speed, strength and agility to prepare for practices and field use. The camp is scheduled from 6:15 to 8:30 p.m., Monday, July 17 to Thursday, July 20 at South Valley Park, 19003 Watkins Mill Road. Participants should wear lose fitting comfortable clothes (no cutoff shorts) and a light colored T-shirt. Please bring water and do not wear cleats. There is no registration for this camp; simply arrive at 6:15 p.m. and be ready to give 110% effort! For more information, e-mail Athletes of Tomorrow Director Keith Peterson at *Klp1577@gmail.com* or MVSA Football Commissioner Quintin Cosby at *qdcosby @yahoo.com*.





Give your business a boost!

Reach 40,000 residents in Montgomery Village Call 240-243-2359 RECREATION

Learn to swim at MVF pools!

Swim instruction is available for all ages at MVF pools. Classes include Parent & Me, Tiny Tots, Youth and Adult. There is a class for every level.

If group lessons aren't your thing or you need flexibility, private lessons are available as well. For more information or to register, visit *www.montgomery village.com*.

Yoga on the Dock



Join instructor Susan Young for a morning yoga session overlooking scenic Lake Whetstone. This beginner/intermediate class is scheduled from 9 to 10 a.m. on Saturdays, July 15 and Sept. 9 at Lake Whetstone Dock, 18701

Montgomery Village Avenue. \$10/participant, per date; dropins welcome!

For more information or to register, call 301-948-0110 or visit *www.montgomeryvillage.com*.



Saturday, May 20 to Sunday, Sept. 24 MVF Amazing Race

Our 50th Anniversary Swim Challenge was so popular last year that we decided to come back with a new "Amazing" one!

This summer residents can embark on a trek around Montgomery Village pools in an "Amazing Race"-style competition. Pick up your first route at any lifeguard office. Complete route tasks and questions to advance to the next route. Finishing the race is easy, but it might be lengthy. Depending on how successful you are in completing the routes, you will swim or walk between 30 and 50k to complete the race.

The first 70 participants who complete the challenge will receive a high-quality wicking MVF Amazing Race T-shirt.

www.montgomeryvillage.com



Creative Discovery enrollment

Enrollment for Montgomery Village's recreational pre-school program is underway! Creative Discovery is for students 3 and 4 years old (entering kindergarten in 2018/2019). Through engaged learning, students will develop strong cognitive, physical and social skills, which are the foundation for academic success. Daily activities focus on themes such as colors, science, numbers, technology and, of course, the alphabet! The curriculum is based on MCPS kindergarten requirements in order to ensure that students are up to speed and ready to shine in elementary school.

For more information or to register, contact Melanie Maggi at 240-243-2338, e-mail *mmaggi@mvf.org* or visit *www. montgomeryvillage.com*.

Taekwondo

Instructed by Michael McFarland of Han Mi Martial Arts, your child will learn the authentic Korean Martial Art of Taekwondo, "the way of hands and feet." It is the world's most popular martial art form. Taekwondo is known for its powerful kicks and challenging sparing style while also being a fun, competitive, international sport.

Classes are designed for ages 3 ¹/₂ to adult and are scheduled for Mondays, July 10 to Aug. 28 at Stedwick Community Center, 10401 Stedwick Road. For more information or to register, visit *www.montgomeryvillage. com* or call 301-948-0110.



RECREATION

Camp Tiny Feet

Register today! Campers ages 3 years 9 months to 6 years old love spending their summer mornings at Camp Tiny Feet!

Led by Montgomery County Public School 1st Grade Teacher Megan Gesualdi, activities will range from exciting group games and S.T.E.M. projects to arts and crafts! Each session also features one visiting performer or extra special activity, along with daily swim lessons (weather permitting).

Camp Tiny Feet runs in 2-week sessions, now through Friday, Aug. 11, and is held at Whetstone Community Center, 19140 Brooke Grove Court, from 9 a.m. to noon Monday through Friday.

For more information or to register visit www. montgomeryvillage.com/recreation/camps or call 301-948-0110.



Sunday, Aug. 6 | 2 to 3 p.m.

Join us at North Creek Nature Center, 20300 Aspenwood Lane to build a wooden birdfeeder to take home! These feeders will be great for a variety of small to medium birds and mixed bird seed. Backyard birdfeeding can aid in bird survival, especially during the winter months.

Recreation staff will be on hand to guide you through the steps to complete your feeder. Children must be accompanied by adults. Pre-registration is required for everyone building a birdfeeder. Registration is not required for those not building a birdfeeder. There is a \$10 fee for each bird feeder kit reserved.





Camp Tiny Feet is underway and enjoying summer mornings with daily swim lessons, picnic lunches and other fun activities and special guests. Register today at www.montgomeryvillage.com.

Camp Camp **SOARING STARS** for ages 6 to 8 SATURDAY, AUG. 26 **One Week Sessions! One Week Sessions!** Pool time, sports, games, crafts and field trips! North Creek Community Center, 20125 Arrowhead Road Lake Marion Community Center **9** A.M. TO NOON 8821 East Village Avenue 8821 East Village Avenue Rain or Shine 9 a.m. to 4 p.m. 9 a.m. to 4 p.m. Session 5-9 \$184/Resident, \$199/Non-resident Session 5-9 Quiet Hour July 17 to July 21 4022.305 Session 5 Session 5 Theme: Creatures & Critters Theme: Animal Planet 9 to 10 a.m. Special Guest: Under The Sea Presentation July 24 to July 28 4022.306 Session 6 Session 6 Theme: Up, Up and Away Theme: Space is the Place Field Trip: Udvar Hazy Air and Space Museum July 31 to Aug. 4 4022.307 Session 7 Session 7 This is a free, hands-on experience for the entire family! Theme: Knights & Princesses Theme: Castles and Thrones Field Trip: Laser Tag Field Trip: Laser Tag Local businesses will be displaying a wide assortment of unique Session 8 Aug 7. to Aug. 11 4022.308 Session 8 trucks in the North Creek Community Center Parking Lot. Theme: Fun & Fitnes Theme: Hea Field Trip: Rockin' Jump Field Trip: Rockin' Jump Kids will have the opportunity to get behind the wheel of their Session 9 Aug. 14 to Aug. 18 4022.309 Session 9 favorite vehicles, honk horns, explore and learn from their Theme: Aim for the Stars Theme: Rock Stars Special Event: End of Summer Cookout operators!

Children must be accompanied by an adult to attend this event.



Extended Day^{*} | 7:30 a.m. to 6 p.m. Morning only: \$63 | Afternoon only: \$84 | All day: \$147

Swim lessons available, too! *prices vary per session. Details a www.montgomeryvillage.com

Angel Wings

KIDS PAGE



Your ad here! Call 240-243-2359 to sponsor the **MV Kids Page TODAY!**

MV Kids Learn About Seashells =

A seashell is a hard, protective outer layer created by an animal that lives in the sea. The shell is part of the body of the animal called an exoskeleton. Seashells found washed up on beaches are often empty. If you do find a seashell with an animal still living in it, you should return it to the water. Cleaning and sorting your seashells is another fun part of collecting.



Types of Seashells

Scallop

Welk

Finding Seashells

Looking for and collecing seashells is called shelling—like catching fish is called fishing. Here are some tips for the next time you go shelling:

1. Look for seashells an hour before and after low tide. Find tide charts for your beach location online or in a local newspaper.

2. Look for seashells early in the morning and in the evenings when there are fewer people shelling with you.

3. Talk to people at local gift shops and restaurants to find out which types of seashells are native to the area so you know what you're looking for.

Fun with Seashells

There are many ways to use the shells you collect. You can make crafts, decorate



MV SENIORS





New Member pricing for summer session Mondays, Wednesdays and Fridays!

Stedwick Community Center 10401 Stedwick Road

> \$10/Resident \$20/Non-resident

SUMMER Session

through Aug. 18



Potluck and Guest Speaker

Join us Wednesday, July 26 for our Seniors in Action Potluck! All members are welcomed to bring a dish and socialize with other members on that day. Our guest speaker will be Patricia Dorn from the Maryland Insurance Administration.

The Maryland Insurance Administration regulates the business of insurance in Maryland. They provide consumers with information about all areas of insurance including auto, home, renters, life, health and long term care insurance. They also educate Marylanders about their rights and investigate written allegations that an insurance entity has violated a contract or state law.

Monthly Member Meeting

We will be holding our first SiA Monthly Member Meeting for the Summer Session on Friday, July 21 at 10:30 a.m. In the meeting, members will have the opportunity to discuss any questions, concerns or suggestions with regard to the Seniors in Action program.



Summer Field Trip

Steeped in history, rich with tradition, the United States Botanic Garden (USBG) is a living plant museum that informs visitors about the importance, and often irreplaceable value, of plants to the well-being of humans and to earth's fragile ecosystems.

Our trip is scheduled for Wednesday, Aug. 9. The bus will leave at 9:30 a.m. from the Stedwick Community Center. Seats are limited. **\$5/SiA members**, **\$8/Non-members**.

Look for information in the Fall Recreation Guide for our trip to Toby's Dinner Theatre, scheduled for Wednesday, Oct. 25.



Lunch Bunch

Lunch Bunch (After SiA) will meet at the Stedwick Community Center the second Friday of each month during the summer session. Please see the SiA Bulletin Board for additional information!



Thank you to Nina from Giant for coming to speak at our SiA potluck for June! Senior in Action Banner for the July 4th Parade!





MONDAY

Arts and Crafts 10 a.m. to noon

Artists of all skill levels will enjoy the wide variety of projects this workshop has to offer. **July 17:** Beaded Eyeglass Holders (for donation)

23



Book Club

10 to 11 a.m. - third Monday each month

Group will meet on the third Monday of each month. Members discuss and give opinions about the book selected by the group. July 17: Our group will meet to nominate books to go on our reading list for Fall 2017. No Meeting in August.



SiA Games / Social Hour

10 a.m. to Noon

Enjoy a variety of card and board games, conversation and refreshments.

WEDNESDAY



Light Cardio Workout 9 to 10 a.m.

Work out with other SiA members using light weights and resistance bands. Guided by an interactive exercise video.



SiA Games / Social Hour

10 a.m. to 1 p.m. Enjoy a variety of card and board games, conversation and refreshments.

FRIDAY



Seated Tai Chi 9:30 a.m. to 10:15 p.m. Join instructor Marcy as she t

Join instructor Marcy as she takes you through the controlled and low impact movements of Tai Chi.



Bingo & Brown Bag Lunch Noon to 2 p.m.

second Friday each month Bring a lunch (beverages will be provided) and play bingo with friends. Members may bring friends and family to join in the fun. Free for members, \$2/Non-member Next date: Aug. 12

REGISTRATION — Not a member of Seniors in Action? Sign up today at any SiA program, the MVF Office, 10120 Apple Ridge Road, or online at *www.montgomeryvillage.com* today!

The Seniors in Action program offers convenient and affordable activities to seniors 55 years and older, Monday through Friday. For more details on any Seniors in Action activity, contact Alex Alcon at 240-243-2314 or e-mail *aalcon@mvf.org.*



<u>Please Note:</u>

Every exterior modification must meet established ARB application and approval requirements regardless of whether modification or replacement material has been approved in concept in the past. Also, MVF does not take responsibility regarding claims and services advertised in the *Montgomery Village News*.







301-252-3917 www.divinelandscaping.com MONTGOMERY VILLAGE NEWS

SERVICES AROUND TOWN

PROFESSIONAL DIRECTORY

Doors · Windows · Kitchens · Baths Tile Work · Roof Repairs · Masonry PROFESSIONAL **Rotten Wood Repairs** DIRECTORY **Dan Himmelfarb Company** DENTISTS REPAIRS AND REMODELING Steven M. Anolik, D.D.S. Corey B. Anolik, D.D.S. 301-774-4004 Cosmetic and Restorative Dentistry 1 Bank Street, Suite 110 MHIC #18344 Since 1971 Gaithersburg, MD 20878 info@DHCRepairs.com **Fully Licensed & Insured** www.DHCRepairs.com 301-948-8838 HARDWARE STORE <u>Please Note:</u> advertise your Every exterior modification must TW PERRY services meet established ARB applica-8101 Snouffer School Road tion and approval requirements Hardware, Power Tools, Paint, Seasonal regardless of whether modifica-Supplies, Building Materials & More! tion or replacement material has www.twperry.com | 301-840-9600 been approved in concept in the past. Also, MVF does not take ane Nevys responsibility regarding claims **LEGAL ADVISORS** and services advertised in the Montgomery Village News. **Rees Broome, PC Community Counselors Condominium and homeowner** LOOKING FOR PROFESSIONAL HOME SERVICES? association legal advisors for 35 years Dues collection, covenant enforcement, contract review, meetings, board training and SEARCH OUR ADVERTISERS FIRST community governance 301-222-0152 | pphilbin@reesbroome.com **OPTOMETRISTS** MONTGOMERY VILLAGE EYE CENTER Gabriela Miller, O.D. Eye Exams • Glasses • Contact Lenses • Emergencies 18310 Montgomery Village Ave., Suite 140 301-869-4070 www.MontgomeryVillageEye.com **VETERINARIAN Kristy Bennett, DVM** Montgomery Village Animal Hospital 19222 Montgomery Village Ave. 301-330-2200 | www.mvah.us **Gaithersburg Animal Hospital** 280 North Frederick Avenue | 301-948-2828 Washingtonian Checkbook "Best Vets" Angie's List Super Service Award 2013-2016 **PROFESSIONALS** Advertise here and reach 40,000 residents in Montgomery Village. Four lines for one year, Only \$425! **YOUR HOME – YOUR CASTLE** Additional lines for \$4 per line per issue. Buy · Sell · Repair · Decorate · Maintain · Improve Call 240-243-2342 or e-mail *mvads@mvf.org*

CLASSIFIEDS

SERVICES OFFERED

HOME RESTORATION

Montgomery Village, Home Owner and Business Owner of Palma's Restoration LLC. As: Complete wood and Metal Fences repair and new Installation, Walls repairs, Drywall, plaster and paint, siding, carpentry work restore sheds with new roof and Wood, deck restoration paint and power wash, bathrooms and kitchen tile, and Complete Landscape Services, walk way, step stones, paver and Patios.

Construction Licensed, bonded and Insured. Email: *palmas restorationllc*@gmail.com. Business number 240-462-1750.

MILESTONE GENERAL CONTRACTORS, INC.

P: 301-793-9478 E: *milestonegc@aol.com*

Residential/Commercial Painting, Drywall Repairs, Gutter Cleaning, Kitchen, Basement/ Bathroom Remodeling, Fence, Decks & more! Licensed and Insured. MHIC #128392

YOUR AD HERE

Reach 40,000 residents in Montgomery Village. E-mail us at *classifieds@mvf.org* or call 240-243-2342 or 2359.

HELP WANTED

MONTGOMERY VILLAGE FOUNDATION DEPARTMENT OF RECREATION, PARKS, AND CULTURE IS SEEKING:

SUBSTITUTE ASSISTANT DOCK MANAGER

Assist in the supervision of the Lake Whetstone boat rental program during hours of operation. Rent boats to visitors, collects fees, maintain the dock area and surrounding grounds including picnic tables, volleyball court, trashcans and parking area. Provide customer service to park patrons, explaining and enforcing park rules. Assist with the opening and closing of the boat the dock each business day, monitor maintenance of boats and complete operating reports as requested. Work is performed outdoors in various weather conditions. Work will be scheduled on weekends on an as needed basis through September 24.

Requirements: Min. age 18; CPR & First Aid certified; and hold Maryland Boating Safety Certification or have the ability to obtain one prior to employment.

Salary \$11 to \$12/hour

To apply, visit *www.montgomeryvillage.com*. Montgomery Village Foundation is an Equal Opportunity Employer M/F/D/V.



Terms & Conditions:

1. MVF reserves the right to:

- Reject advertisements that do not adhere to local, county, state and federal laws.
- Reject advertisements that compete directly with Foundation programs, events, classes, products and services.
- c. Reject advertisements that are inflammatory, slanderous, libelous, lewd or include other language deemed inconsistent with the Foundation's mission and policies.
- 2. No cash refunds or credit adjustments will be made after the advertisement has been published.
- No credit adjustments will be made after 30 days of publication of the original incorrect insertion.
- 4. The *Village News* is not liable for any additional costs resulting from the recurring insertions of the original incorrect advertisement if the error has not been reported to the *Village News* in writing by the advertiser within 30 days of publication of the original incorrect insertion.
- 5. Every effort will be made to afford advertising position requested. Failure to comply with position request will not result in make-good or refund of payment.
- The Village News assumes no liability if for any reason it becomes necessary to omit an advertisement.
- 7. The Village News is not liable for delays in delivery and/or non-delivery in the event of natural disaster, action by any government or quasi-government entity, fire, flood, insurrection, riot, explosion, embargo, strikes whether legal or illegal, labor or material shortage, transportation interruption of any kind, work slowdown, or any condition beyond the control of the publisher affecting publications or delivery in any manner. Timely delivery of the Village News shall be defined by the end of Monday immediately following the Friday publication date.
- 8. Advertiser agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless the *Village News* and MVF from any and all liability for content including text, illustrations, representatives, sketches, maps, trademarks, labels or other copyrighted matter, or advertisements printed or the unauthorized use of any person's name or photograph arising from the publisher's reproduction and publishing of such advertisements pursuant to the advertiser's or agency's order. The *Village News* reserves the right to reject, discontinue or omit any advertising or any part thereof at any time. This right shall not be deemed to have been waived by acceptance or actual use of any advertising matter.

9. No cancellations accepted after publication deadline.

CLASSIFIED AD DEADLINE MONDAY, JULY 24

DENTAL ASSISTANT

Looking for Dental Assistant for a general dental practice in Gaithersburg. X-ray Certification and fluent in Spanish a plus. Please call 202-439-0785.

HOUSING WANTED

Quiet couple seeking basement-type living space with private entrance in Montgomery Village area. Call 240-425-3657.

MOVING SALE

Selling like-new furniture including recliner Sofa, Trundle bed, 3-piece Patio set with cushions, large, fine Rug and brand new tri-fold Bicycle. Very Fair Prices. Located in Montgomery Village, reasonable offers considered. By appointment only: 917-622-2446.

FOR RENT

Charming 3 BR brick TH. New Bathrooms, New Carpet & Fresh Paint. Refinished Hardwood in LR & DR. Deck to Wooded View, Finished W/O Basement. Located in Village \$1,750 301-792-3508

Submit a photo

of your lost pet

at no additional

charge.

Classified Advertising Order Form

Issue date(s) this ad is to run:

Please check the appropriate Section for your ad:

For Sale

□ Services

□ Help Wanted

- □ House for Sale □ Child Care
- □ House for Rent □ Lost 8
 - Lost & Found (FREE to Village Residents)

□ Garage Sale

- Giveaway (FREE to Village Residents)
- Other _____

Title:

Body: –

Classified Rates: \$12 for 20 words or less and 40 cents for each additional word. Phone numbers count as one word.
Deadline: 5 p.m. Monday prior to issue date
Payment Due: \$_____

Payment MUST accompany Classified A Montgomery Village Foundation.	0		, ,	or check made payable to the
Credit Card Number:			Exp. Date:	3-digit code:
Name:			Telephone: ()	
Address:				
City:		State:		ZIP:





New Listing



PLEASANT RIDGE

\$509,000

Awesome new listing! 5 BR, 2 FB, 2 HB SFH - this home is sure to be a favorite with new HVAC, new carpet, renovated kitchen with stainless steel and granite, updated baths, gleaming hardwood floors, amazing 2-level deck, large yard with lovely landscaping - freshly painted throughout in beautiful

neutral shades that welcome everyones' decor - oversized 2-car garage - tons of storage throughout - wonderfully large finished walkout basement that can be in-law suite - fabulous value! This is a true WOW house!

For Sale



KENSINGTON \$649.500

Beautiful 5 BR, 3.5 BA SFH w/1st floor master suite, hdwd. floors, 2 fireplaces, new carpet, fresh paint - master bath w/designer tile, slipper tub, walk-in shower, double vanities - open kitchen w/granite counters, bay window - fin. bsmt. w/full BA, BR.



企R

HOME

KENTLANDS CONDO \$259.000

BEING SOLD AS A SHORT SALE!

Beautiful 3 BR, 2 FBA condo in secure building located in Kentlands Ridge. Updates include carpet, paint, appliances, granite counters and new windows. Living room fireplace. 2nd floor w/balcony.

Sweet HOME

Under Contract





PARTRIDGE PLACE \$269.900

Lovely big townhouse with finished walkout basement - 3 BR, 2.5 BA, hardwood floors, new carpet, fresh paint, updates throughout - large eat-in kitchen - separate dining room - located on no through street - fenced yard backs to woods.

THE POINTS

\$395.000 Sure to please SFH on quiet cul-de-sac - 5 BR, 3.5 BA, finished basement with full bath - updated baths, refinished hardwood floors, new carpet,

renovated kitchen, vinyl siding, new fixtures/lighting.

COLLINGWOOD/GOSHEN ESTATES



SOLD

SOLD!

SOL

Sold

Stunning Toll Bros 4 BR, 2.5 BA SFH w/1st floor office - treed lot on cul-de-sac, hardwood floors, upgraded kitchen w/center island, stainless appliances, granite & new wood cabinets - new master bath w/double vanity, designer tile, glass shower & soaking tub.

OVERLEA

\$270,000

\$367,000

\$349.000

\$422.000

\$559,900

Beautiful TH w/HGTV features - 2 BR, 2 FBA & loft -2 master BRs - stone fireplace surround, designer baths w/subway tile, marble floors, vessel sink & niches – kitchen has slate floor & 42" maple cabinets!

SFH w/2-car garage & fenced yard - sunroom addition, table space kitchen w/new dishwasher - 4 BR, 2.5 BA, separate DR, LR, FR w/fireplace, hardwood floors, ceiling fans. Great value!

EAST VILLAGE

Stunning garage 3 BR, 2 FBA, 2 HBA TH. Renovated kitchen w/new stainless steel appliances - wood floors, new carpet, ceramic tile - Fireplace, finished w/o basement - deck, fenced backyard.

WILLIAMS RANGE

Lovely 4 BR, 2 FBA home in Williams Range! Hardwood floors, renovated baths & kitchen beautiful landscaping & brick paver hardscape!

Since 1983, selling the best homes in Montgomery Village

Realty Group

A donation from each sale goes directly to Children's Miracle Network local hospital - Children's National Medical Center in Washington, D.C.



